
October 20, 2005 
 
 
The Executive Session Town Council meeting was called to order by Heidi Rogers 
at the Town House, 181 Howard Hill Road, Foster, RI at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The following members were present: 
 
  Heidi Rogers, President 
  Steven Bellucci, Vice President 
  Colette J. Matarese 
  Ralph Berkowitz was excused 
  Harold R. Shippee, Sr., 
  Bradford Gorham Esq., representing Gorham and Gorham Town 
Solicitors was in attendance for executive session and Jane Gurzenda was in 
attendance for the open session. 
 
Steven Bellucci moved, Colette J. Matarese seconded and it was so voted  
unanimously so voted to go into executive session according to 42-46-4&5 (1) for 
the purpose of discussing personnel to review candidates applications for Chief of 
Police Position and to reconvene and further to keep the minutes of said meeting 
closed and the minutes of all executives sessions held previous to this meeting be 
closed and remain closed pursuant to provisions of General laws of Rhode Island 
42-46-4. 
 
Steven Bellucci moved, Colette J. Matarese seconded and it was so voted to close 
the execution session at 6:50 p.m. 
 
The October 20, 2005 town council meeting was called to order by Heidi Rogers at 
the Town House, 181 Howard Hill Road, Foster, RI at 7:00 p.m. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the flag was recited. 
 
Frances Johnson of Plainfiekd Pike and a member of the Conservation 
Commission spoke up and said that behavior of some council members had 
comprised the basic attempts of democracy which was equality.  She remarked that 
for more than a year she has requested that the Soil & Erosion Sediment Control 
Ordinance be enforced and it applies to all citizens for protection.  She noted that it 
was not being enforced. She said that the response from the gravel bank owners 
was that it was the way they always did it and we don’t intend to follow the law or 
we don’t want to.  She said that it was completely unacceptable. Ms. Johnson 
remarked that a governing body knowingly refuses to enforce the law they were 
elected to uphold and allows the lack of enforcement to a certain special interest 
group is corruption.  
 
Ronald Cervasio of Old Plainfield Pike said that it seems the Recreation 
Committee has screwed up. He said they thought the playground was grant money 
and it was capital money.  He said that David Costa went ahead an got four 
packages of information and expended the money by getting the best deal of the 
four packages.  Ronald Cervasio said it was remissible of them by not bringing it 
before the council and having a recommendation done by the Recreation Director. 
He said he was concerned that Ms. Matarese was going around town explaining it 
to citizens and that was how he found out about it instead of bringing it before the 
council and the council should address it and then address the recreation 
committee.  He said Ms. Matarese has never made a mistake because she has never 
done anything. 
 
Gordon Rogers of Cucumber Hill Road said he read it n the Providence Journal 
that both democrats oppose Gawel’s position on the search panel and he asked 
Council member Colette Matarese if that was true and why was it. 
 



Council Member Matarese answered that Katie Warchut had asked her how she 
felt the Committee should have been formulated and she stated that she believed 
the committee should have been formulated differently and she knew of no time 
where a manager who was leaving a position was in charge of a committee to hire 
there replacement.   
 
Gordon Rogers said he highlighted the minutes of September 22, 2005 and read 
from that section about appointing Michael Gawel to the committee and how 
Colette Matarese voted for it yet in the paper you oppose it. Mr. Rogers then said 
back to you Colette.  Heidi Rogers said that Colette did not need to response to 
that as it was not in the agenda. 
 
Rose Salvadore of Walker Road said that Ronald Cervasio has said many times 
that he goes to many meetings so he knows the protocol about bidding over $5,000 
for a playground.  Ms. Salvadore said he was trying to spread rumors about Colette 
Matarese.  Ronald Cervasio interrupted and the President banged her gavel. 
 
Peter A. Baribault of Kennedy Road noted that the matter was not on the agenda 
and should be placed on an agenda if it was going to be discussed further. 
 
Mary DiLibero of Briggs Road remarked that at every meeting she attends Mr. 
Cervasio makes comments and it is very disruptive and rude.  Mr. Cervasio then 
interrupted and the President asked if there any other real concerns. 
 
Steven Bellucci moved Colette J. Matarese seconded and it was so voted to 
approve the minutes of September 27, 2005 and October 6, 2005.  Jane Gurzenda 
remarked that her name was misspelled in the September 27, 2005 minutes. 
 
Heidi Rogers recused herself regarding the approval of General Warrant #6 
because she was receiving a stipend as well as her husband Gordon Rogers for 
volunteer work with the Foster Ambulance Corps. 
 
Steven Bellucci moved, Harold R. Shippee, Sr. seconded and it was so voted to 
approve Payroll Warrant #14 in the amount of $21,201.05 and Payroll Warrant 
#15 in the amount of $28,111.27. 
 
Steven Bellucci moved, Colette J. Matarese seconded to approve General Warrant 
#6 in the amount of $213,278.66. Colette J. Matarese questioned the payment for 
Simplex Time Recorder Co. in the amount of $536.88 because she was the 
understanding that Mrs. Irons already had a better model for the time clock and she 
wanted to make sure the town was credited for it.   
 
Steven Bellucci said he was surprised that the town had one especially when no 
one said there was one on hand.  The Town Clerk answered that both she and Jane 
Gurzenda did mention it.  The Town Clerk also remarked that she did in fact leave 
a note on Richard Grant’s desk to return the time clock so it should not be on the 
warrant.  She noted that the model that was already on hand was a better model. 
Colette J. Matarese asked if it was returned and Richard Grant answered no. 
Steven Bellucci questioned Mr. Grant if he had seen the time clock.  Mr. Grant 
answered no.  Steven Bellucci asked Mr. Grant to review the time clock to see if it 
was better and then return one of them.  Councilor Matarese said that the time 
clock was already up and functioning and she was supposed that Richard Grant 
had not seen it.  Mr. Grant said he didn’t say he didn’t know about it he said he 
didn’t see it.  Richard Grant said he tried to have it installed in the front hallway as 
he was told to do.  Harold R. Shippee, Sr. questioned who told him to do it. Steven 
Bellucci answered that he told Mr. Grant to put it there.  Mr. Shippee questioned 
that Mr. Bellucci wanted a time clock in the public view.  Steven Bellucci said he 
spoke with Jonathan Mitchell and he thought that was the best place for it in the 
front office and that he would handle all the stuff for it and then told Mr. Grant to 
install it there.  Harold Shippee remarked that it should be on the next agenda on 
who uses the time clock because no one knows who is to use it.  Steven Bellucci 
said he also spoke with Jonathan Mitchell regarding the time clock and that he felt 



everybody should use the time clock so it would be an accurate measure for him to 
decide to use for vacations and sick time even for salary people.  Colette J. 
Matarese asked that the amount of $536.88 be deducted from the warrant. Colette 
J. Matarese moved amend the motion to make the warrant $536.88 less than what 
it is, Harold R. Shippee, Sr. seconded and the motion did not pass.  The president 
asked for a vote on the main motion and that also did not pass. 
 
Peter A. Baribault of Kennedy Road noted that the town would now be charged 
with late charges and interest all for an invoice of $536.88. 
 
Steven Bellucci then moved to table the $536.88. Colette J. Matarese noted that 
was what her motion was which he just voted no for and seconded the motion and 
the motion passed. 
 
Colette J. Matarese moved, Harold R. Shippee, Sr. seconded and it was so voted to 
approve the tax collector abatements due to conversion errors from the Munis 
Software to the Opal Software for the years 1988, 1991, 1992. 
 
Colette J. Matarese asked if Brenda Frederickson was informed of the item on the 
agenda and she was told that a letter was sent to Mrs. Frederickson who responded 
and said she was unable to attend.  Mrs. Matarese said that if the discussion goes 
beyond the letter she would remove herself.  She believed it was a personnel issue.  
The Town Solicitor reminded the council that Brenda Frederickson was no longer 
an employee of the town. 
 
Heidi Rogers read the Treasurer’s memorandum responding to Cheryl Wright’s 
request to investigate and report on the calculation of vacation time paid to Brenda 
Frederickson.   Cheryl Wright remarked that it still did not explain how much time 
she was eligible for in 2001-2002 as she worked only 15 hours a week.  Mrs. 
Wright said the explanation does not tell her what Brenda Frederickson was 
eligible for.  Mrs. Wright believed that she could not be eligible for all those 
vacation hours.  Cheryl Wright also said that Mrs. Frederickson opened up the can 
of worms when she was requesting extra money from the town. Cheryl Wright 
again said she believed that Mrs. Frederickson was not eligible for all that vacation 
time.  Mrs. Wright commented that the Treasurer did not answer her question. 
 
The Town Solicitor suggested that Mrs. Wright put her questions in writing.  Mrs. 
Wright answered that she had put her questions in writing.  The solicitor suggested 
to place her follow-up questions in writing.  Cheryl Wright said her question to the 
Treasurer was that his report should include and explain how 133.84 hours were 
calculated and for what period of time. 
 
Peter A. Baribault of Kennedy Road said that there seems to be an accusation that 
is being made that an employee got some money for something that they did not 
deserve.  He said that would be a crime and if a crime has been committed it 
should be investigated. 
 
Colette J. Matarese remarked that she was removing herself from the discussion.  
The President said she was ending the discussion. 
 
Heidi Rogers read a letter from Lynne s. Rider requesting the compliance status of 
the Town Soil & Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance.  Heidi Rogers said that 
she did have a discussion with Robert Fallon and asked him to provide the status 
and she was told by him that most of them had been abandoned. Heidi Rogers 
reported that the Gervasio and Chmura banks are closing soon.  Heidi Rogers also 
noted that a letter was recently sent by the Building Official to Jacques Gravel 
Bank ordering a desist and decease until certain matters were complied.   
 
Lynne S. Rider responded that the Jacques Gravel Bank did have a plan and if they 
are not in compliance an order should have been sent to them.  She noted that 
others do not even have plans and she applauded Robert Fallon for enforcing it. 
Mrs. Rider asked when the gravel bank owners would be required to comply.  



Heidi Rogers said she had been trying to get answers for Mrs. Rider.  Steven 
Bellucci asked why nothing was done when she was a council member.  Mrs. 
Rider responded that when she did become aware of the problem letters were sent 
out to the gravel bank owners and the 120 days were up after she was no longer in 
office.  She reminded Mr. Bellucci that he has been in office for some time now 
and has come before him again and again and he refuses to do anything about it. 
 
Heidi Rogers reminded Mrs. Rider that the Hopkins Gravel bank was in litigation. 
Mrs. Rider said that the council should make their employees do their job.  She 
asked for a date when the gravel banks owners will be made to comply.  She said 
one man is getting decease and desist order and closing his business and the others 
don’t even have a plan. 
 
Ronald Cervasio of Old Plainfield Pike said that he continues to hear that Robert 
Fallon is working on and as soon as these people lost they started to harp on gravel 
banks and the rest of need to do business and buy gravel.   
 
Gordon Rogers of Cucumber Hill Road quoted from the soil erosion control and 
sediment control ordinance. 
 
Frances Johnson of Plainfield Pike and a member of the conservation commission 
remarked that a letter had been sent to the previous council on the soil erosion and 
sediment plan ordinance stating that it was not being followed and they did begin 
the enforcement of the ordinance.  She said the new council did receive the same 
letter in April 2005 with a new cover letter.  She reminded the council that in 
February the present council made a motion that Robert Fallon do his job. 
 
A bid opening was scheduled to open bids for a generator for the Foster 
Ambulance Corps.  No bids were received. 
 
Steven Bellucci reported that the search committee for a new police chief met and 
interviewed candidates and submitted the top three candidates to the town council. 
 
Steven Bellucci moved to appoint Robert E. Coyne Jr. as the Chief of Police of 
Foster. Colette J. Matarese noted that during executive session Harold R. Shippee, 
Sr. wanted the entire council to interview the top two candidates because the third 
person had removed himself from consideration.  She believed that the entire 
council should interview the candidate and then make the appointment.  Steven 
Bellucci remarked that the motion that was made was to bring the top three to the 
council to act on.  Steven Bellucci remarked that Colette J. Matarese had her 
chance and she did not bother to show up.  Harold R. Shippee, Sr. commented that 
at the last meeting she said she wouldn’t do it.  Mr. Bellucci said that as far as he 
was concerned if she really wanted to interview the people she should have been 
there.  He said it was the same process that was done for the new recruit.  He said 
it was just another way for her to stall the process.  Harold R. Shippee, Sr. 
remarked that he had nothing against the final candidate or any one of them.  He 
noted that 5 council members were voted in and 5 should look at the resumes.  
Harold R. Shippee, Sr. said all he wanted to do was sit down and have a 
conversation with the candidates.  Heidi Rogers said that she was comfortable with 
the recommendation from the committee.  Colette J. Matarese said that the whole 
process shut out one member of the council and that was Harold R. Shippee, Sr.  
She said he asked for the opportunity to interview people and there is an 
opportunity now to work as a whole.  Steven Bellucci remarked that Mr. Shippee 
had 3 days to call the candidates and she could have showed up at the interviews.  
Colette J. Matarese said that the committee did an admirable job but there should 
be an opportunity for the council to sit with the person as the council did for the 
Treasurer’s position. 
 
Charles Stockwell of Winsor Road, a member of the search committee spoke up 
and said that the search committee both independently read the applicants’ 
resumes interviewed them for 25 minutes each and then each member rated the 
three final candidates.    Mr. Stockwell noted that Michael Gawel was leaving 



Friday, October 28, 2005 and one Officer is out sick and Retired Lt. Chapman has 
already reach his quota of working 75 days this year and that leaves 3 police 
officers to run the department 7 days a week 24 hours a day.  He said the 
committee stands by their recommendation and he asked that the council makes an 
appointment on public safety and not politics.   
 
Robert Boyden of King Road and the Chair of the Republic Town Committee 
stood up and remarked that Colette J. Matarese and Harold R. Shippee, Sr. were 
making stalling tactics for the appointment of the police chief. 
 
Lynne S. Rider of Burgess Road remarked that in the past year there has been 
many allegations that one side was not telling the other side what they were doing. 
She believed that with such an important position as the Police Chief the entire 
council should be involved.   
 
Thomas Mercier of Burgess Road, a member of the search committee said that the 
Town was in a dire situation and should make a decision and consider the Town of 
Foster and not politics. 
 
Ronald Cervasio of Old Plainfield Pike said that Mr. Shippee cannot keep a secret 
because as soon as he found out whom the three candidates were he starting telling 
people.  Mr. Cervasio said that Sam Mooney knew about it before Colette J. 
Matarese knew about and this is crap. 
 
Peter A. Baribault of Kennedy Road said he applauded the search committee for 
the work they did and the committee serves the council in an advisory capacity.  
He said that the council has the responsibility of making a choice based on their 
opinion of the candidate.  He believed the entire council should have the 
opportunity to talk with the candidate.  Steven Bellucci remarked that they had the 
resumes for the last three days. 
 
Colette J. Matarese said that maybe she did not make herself clear but what would 
have been the purpose of bringing back 3 names if they weren’t going to be 
interviewed.  She said she had been through the process before when the former 
Chief was hired.   She said that at that point in time a citizens group brought 5 
names forward and the council interviewed the 5 individuals.  Mrs. Matarese said 
that the council does not live from one council meeting to the next. 
 
 
Gordon Rogers of Cucumber Hill Road questioned Colette J. Matarese about 
recent newspaper article. Colette J. Matarese said why she would ask to bring 3 
people forward if those three people weren’t going to be considered.  She said that 
if she had time to think about the matter she would not have voted that way. She 
said what she said in the paper was that she had never heard of someone leaving a 
job being on the committee and in a position of power in order to replace 
themselves.  Harold R. Shippee, Sr. also believed that Michael Gawel should not 
have been on the committee. 
 
Steven Bellucci said that if they really and truly want to do what is best for the 
town they should approve it. 
 
Heidi Rogers asked for all those in favor and oppose and the motion did not pass. 
 
Heidi Rogers aye Steven Bellucci aye Harold R. Shippee, Sr. nay Colette J. 
Matarese nay 
 
Steven Bellucci moved, Colette J. Matarese seconded and it was so voted to hold 
an executive session on Monday, October 24, 2005 at 5:00 p.m. followed by an 
open session for discussion action appointment Police Chief. 
 
Ronald Cervasio yelled out that they were incredible that they give into the idiots. 
 



A request for the use of a trailer for six months was received from Shaun Turcotte 
and Lisa Brown of Old Danielson Pike while they contract a new residence. There 
was a memo from Robert, Fallon Building Official signing off for the use of the 
trailer. 
 
Steven Bellucci moved, Colette J. Matarese seconded and it was so voted to grant 
Mr. Turcotte a six month temporary permit for a trailer to be taken down 
immediately upon the six month period or sooner if he gets it done. 
 
A letter was received from Governor Carcieri announcing the Town of Foster’s 
grant award in the amount of $58,000 for the following activities: 
 
Housing Rehabilitation  $40,000  
Housing Operating                               14,000 
Food Bank                                              2,000 
Local Administration                             2,000 
 
Heidi Rogers announced that there would be a lead paint class for any landlord 
interested on Tuesday, October 25, 2005 at the Town House.  She also announced 
that Family Day will be held on October 23, 2005 on the town grounds. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    ___________________________ 
 
                                                 Anne M. Irons, Town Clerk 
 
 
An electronic tape is made a part of the record for a complete account of the 
council meeting.  This tape is on file in the vault at town hall. 
     
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


